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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES

Dear Shareholders,

| hereby present the annual report of HyComm Wireless Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014 and summarise
below the recent developments in the Group.

RESULTS OF THE GROUP

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group recorded
turnover for the year of approximately HK$9.1 million (2013:
HK$9.3 million) and a profit for the year of approximately HK$0.8
million (2013: loss of HK$1.3 million). The profit for the year was
mainly attributable to the increase in the amount of revaluation
gains on investment properties.

DIVIDENDS
The Board of Directors (the “Board"”) does not recommend the
payment of any dividends for the year ended 31 March 2014.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group was mainly engaged
in the businesses of leasing of investment properties, property
investment, sub-leasing of car parking spaces and the provision of
loan financing. The rental income from the leasing of car parking
spaces and the investment properties and the interest income
from loan financing continued to contribute to and provide stable
income streams to the Group. The Group recorded turnover of
HK$9.12 million which was represented by the businesses of
leasing of properties, carpark management and loan financing in
the amounts of HK$0.78 million, HK$6.72 million and HK$1.62
million, respectively. The Group recorded profits in the segments
of leasing of properties, loan financing and property investments
of approximately HK$0.02 million, HK$1.22 million and HK$0.20
million, respectively and losses of HK$0.25 million in the segments
of carpark management.

In view of the property market condition of Hong Kong, the Group
has reviewed the portfolio of investment properties from time
to time. With reference to the announcements of the Company
dated 28 August 2013, 25 September 2013, 25 November 2013
and 29 November 2013, the Company disposed of a residential
unit for a cash consideration of HK$110 million and acquired the
entire issued share capital of a company which indirectly holds
various workshops for a consideration of HK$68.5 million.
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PROSPECTS

The disposal of residential properties is a good opportunity for
the Company to capitalise on favourable market conditions
and to enhance the working capital of the Group on one hand
and the acquisition of workshops represent a good opportunity
for the Group to expand its portfolio of investment properties
and enhance its profitability on the other. Apart from new and
potential investments, the Group will continue to focus on its
existing businesses of leasing of properties, property investments,
carpark management and loan financing which provide a stable
income stream to the Group.

The global economy appears to be on the path of recovery but
still has challenges ahead and the outlook for global economic
environment in 2014 remains unclear. The Group will continue to
seek and to evaluate other business opportunities and investment
strategy so as to expand and to diversify its investment portfolio
for strengthening and broadening its income base and generating
greater value to the shareholders. The Directors are optimistic
about the future business development of the Group and will
continue to implement well-established strategies to enhance
the Company’s value and to bring outstanding return to the
shareholders.

LIU Shun Chuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE D

Currently, the principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and its subsidiaries mainly engaged in the businesses of
leasing of investment properties, property investments, provision
of loan financing and operating the leasing of car parking spaces.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES, PLEDGE

OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2014, bank and cash balances (including time
deposits) maintained by the Group were HK$198.0 million (2013:
HK$141.7 million), representing an increase of HK$56.3 million
compared with the position as at 31 March 2013. It is believed
that the Group has adequate cash resources to meet its normal
working capital requirements and any commitments for future
development. The gearing of the Group, measured as total debts
to total assets, was 0.3% (2013: 0.2%) as at 31 March 2014.

Most of the business transactions conducted by the Group were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 March 2014, there
were no outstanding forward contracts in foreign currencies
committed by the Group that might involve it in significant foreign
exchange risks and exposures.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities or capital commitments.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had 11 staff. Employees and
directors are remunerated based on individual contribution,
industry practices and prevailing market conditions and in
accordance with existing labour laws. In addition to basic salaries,
employees and directors are rewarded with performance-related
bonuses and other staff welfare benefits.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive directors. The primary duties of the
audit committee are to review and advise on the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, the auditing and
financial reporting processes and internal control systems of the
Group, including reviewing the results for the year.

The audit committee meets with the Group’s senior management
regularly to review the effectiveness of the internal control systems
and the interim and annual reports of the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company comprises three
members, namely, Mr. Ng Wai Hung, Mr. Wu Wang Li and
Mr. Jacobsen William Keith, all of whom are independent non-
executive directors of the Company. The primary function of the
Remuneration Committee is to make recommendations to the
Board on the Group's policies and structure for remuneration of
Directors and senior management and to review and approve
management remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board's corporate goals and objectives. The principal duties
include the revision of the terms of the remuneration packages of
all Directors and senior management on the basis of their merits,
qualifications and competence by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company consists of four
members, namely, Mr. Liu Shun Chuen, Mr. Ng Wai Hung, Mr.
Wu Wang Li and Mr. Jacobsen William Keith, the majority of them
are independent non-executive Directors. The primary function
of the nomination committee is to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategies.

The roles and authorities of the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee are clearly set out
in their respective terms of reference which are available on
request to shareholders of the Company and are posted on the
Company’s website: http://Awww.hycomm-wireless.com.
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EENEREER ZFHARERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Shun Chuen, aged 51, is the Chairman of the Company.
He joined the Group on 12 October 2007. He is responsible for
the overall corporate strategy of the Group. He holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Business Administration from San Francisco
State University, United States of America, and a Bachelor degree
in Estate Management from University of Reading, United
Kingdom. He has more than 13 years experience in property
development and investment in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Yeung Sau Chung, aged 48, is the managing director of
the Group. He joined the Group on 6 November 2007. He is
currently responsible for the overall management of the Group.
He has more than 18 years experience in research and analysis
of investment portfolios and in risk management. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from City University of
Hong Kong.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kong Lingbiao, aged 46, is a non-executive director of the
Company. He joined the Group on 17 March 2011. He has
more than twenty years working experience in the coal mining
sector and has rich experience in safety supervision, production,
technology, investment, operation and management of coal mine
companies. Mr. Kong graduated from China University of Mining
and Technology (Beijing) and possesses a bachelor degree, a
master degree and a PhD in mining engineering. From 1990 to
2001, Mr. Kong worked in Xuzhou Coal Mining Group as chief
engineer in various coal mines. During the period July 2004 to
September 2010, Mr. Kong worked for and took various senior
positions in China Coal & Coke Holdings Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China National Coal Group Corporation). From
July 2004 to August 2007, he acted as Director of Production
and Construction Department, Director of Production and Safety
Department, Director of Project Construction Office and Vice
Chief Engineer. From August 2007 to September 2010, he acted
as General Director of the Safety Supervision Bureau and Director
of Project Construction Office and was an executive director and
legal representative of China Coal Jingda Coking Limited. Save as
being a non-executive director of the Company, Mr. Kong does
not hold any position within the Company and its subsidiaries.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wu Wang Li, aged 39, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 31 December 2007.
He obtained his bachelor of commerce degree from Deakin
University and has over 12 years of experience in the auditing and
accounting profession and in consulting services. He is a director
of Skywise Consultants Limited, which is principally engaged in
provision of business consulting services such as financial and
accounting services and is a Certified Practicing Accountant,
Australia. Currently, he is an independent non-executive director
of Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 723).

Mr. Ng Wai Hung, aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 10 January 2008. He
is a practicing solicitor and a partner in Iu, Lai & Li, a Hong Kong
firm of solicitors and notaries. He has extensive experience in
the area of securities law, corporate law and commercial law in
Hong Kong and has been involved in initial public offerings of
securities in Hong Kong as well as corporate restructuring and
merger and acquisitions and takeovers of listed companies. He
frequently advises multinational and Hong Kong corporations on
private equity investments, joint ventures as well as on regulatory
compliance matters. Currently, he is an independent non-executive
director of Trigiant Group Limited (Stock Code: 1300),Tech Pro
Technology Development Limited (Stock Code: 3823), GOME
Electrical Appliance Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 493), Fortune
Sun (China) Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 352), Sustainable
Forest Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 723) and Perception Digital
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1822).

Mr. Jacobsen William Keith, aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 20 June
2008. He has more than 17 years experience in corporate finance
and business development. He holds a Bachelor of Law degree
from the University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of British Columbia,
Canada. He is an executive director of Auto Italia Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 720), and an independent non-executive
director of abc Multiactive Limited (Stock Code: 8131), China
Financial Leasing Group Limited (Stock Code: 2312), Sustainable
Forest Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 723) and Perception Digital
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1822).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Liu Yee Nee, aged 48, was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 7 November 2012. Ms. Liu holds
a master degree of Business Administration from the Hong
Kong University of Science & Technology and is a member of
The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries & Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries and has over 24 years experience in the field
of accounting and management.

BIAERITES

RoMIBSEHE BF9m RZZEZTLF+=A
=+ —BEZXEARRTBIFRNTEE  ®
J&Deakin University X 7 2 + 247 - E E &
HedBENBEMRBEE T =F 5 Skywise
Consultants Limited (722 8] 2 £ Z ¥ AR (81
BheARGESEEBRERE) 2E8F AR
MESAD - K BAKRHRETERER AT
(B ARER + 723) 2B IETTESE o

REELELE BESOR R_EENF—A+
REZTAARRBYIFNTEE - HANER
B BAEBEMITRABARRTEMITZA
BN WEBFBZELFZLM - RalEf kL
PFEEEEZLER  TE2HLEREECE
FERXARBEUR FTARGESEA  WES
HEEEWEESEE -  FEERLERAEE
AENENBNETEERNERARERESA
AIIEHEERRYG - HRAERNEBEERAR (K
HARSE 1300)  BERBFERER AR (KNG
K% 3823)  EBERERBER QKL A
5% :493) « B (FREDIZBRER AR (BRHA
352) ~ KIRMEER AR AT (RMH KRR - 723)
RAZBHIERER AT (B RSE - 1822) 258
NIEBMITES -

Jacobsen William Keith o4& » IR F 4755 R - &
ENFARA-_THEZTARAREYIERNITE
F-FRECERMENERBEIAERA T EF
KE o RIFEBRBREER ZZRETEM RN
SREBES ML T AREER Y TEHEIRELTEN -
1 EEENERER AR (MRS : 720) 21T
EEUMKREREEERAT (RMOHKIE - 8131) -
FPREeHAEEEGR AR (BRHBRE  2312)
KEMEERER QG (BRMHOARIR: 723) R4AD&
ISR AR AT (RMDARSE + 1822) 2B IEH
TEE -

mEREHERE

BER/NE BFA8H R_F——_F+— A+t
REZRERARAZARWE - B/NEKAEE
MEABRTHERBELTSEMN Y ARERFER
GEEI NG  AAGEIAE  RERKFLRE
AEAE - RERFUWEMRTBRABRRAGULE
BRABAIMERGZEE R LERREAR
B+ UFER -



Annual Report 2014 o 2014 3R

Report of the Directors

EEERE

The board of directors of the Company submit herewith the
annual report together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 27 to 98.

DIVIDENDS AND RESERVES

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends for
the year ended 31 March 2014.

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2014 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 21 to the
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The investment properties of the Group were revalued as at 31
March 2014 and the resulting revaluation gains amounted to
approximately HK$5,713,000 (2013: HK$1,100,000).

Details of these and other movements in the investment properties
of the Group are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 20 to the financial statements.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group are set out on
page 100.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Liu Shun Chuen (Chairman)

(Appointed as Chairman on 30 May 2013)
Mr. Yeung Sau Chung (Managing Director)

Non-executive director:
Mr. Kong Lingbiao (Resigned as Chairman and Executive Director
on 30 May 2013)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Wu Wang Li

Mr. Ng Wai Hung

Mr. Jacobsen William Keith

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, and to comply
with the Listing Rules, Mr. Kong Lingbiao and Mr. Jacobsen
William Keith will retire from office at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

Save as an employment contract with Mr. Kong Lingbiao at the
salary of HK$240,000 per annum, none of the directors being
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the financial statements:

(i) there were no other transactions which are required to
be disclosed as related party transactions pursuant to the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”); and

(i) there were no other contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 March 2014 and as at the date
of this report, none of the directors, the chief executive and their
associates of the Company had any interests and short positions in
the shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO™)) which have been notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code")
of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

EFERBRHhcER
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EREBESFRPEGROIIEXVITETIRESHHBHE
ARBARBBHARSAARRA(BRAM]) ZE
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3NEMEFEZECMAZ FAEREIXE - D
RIFBRZAEMRUET LT ARNEFETESFR
HHFEETA((RETRDRERTHERAR K
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Percentage of
the Company’s

Long position/ Number of issued
Name of director Short position Ordinary Shares held share capital
AR ATE BT
EEnE HE KB FFEEREE RABT DL
As at 31 March 2014
RZZE—WFE=HA=+—H
Mr. Kong Lingbiao Long Position 60,000,000 12.01%

LeBrE HRE
As at the date of this report
RAFRE B H

Mr. Kong Lingbiao -
LeFREE

SHARE OPTIONS

At the annual general meeting held on 22 August 2013, the
shareholders of the Company approved the share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”), which was adopted on 27 August
2013.

RERE
ARAFEER—E—=ZF N\AF+ BRI ZER
BERE BN - ZE—=F)/\A-t+t+BHEMKE
Rt &l ([ AR RERTEI)) ©
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The primary purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives to directors and eligible participants and it remains in
force for a period of 10 years commencing on 27 August 2013.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors may, at their
absolute discretion, invite any person belonging to any of the
following classes of participants to take up options to subscribe
for shares in the Company:

(i) any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest
or a subsidiary of such company (" Affiliate”); or

(i)  the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include
any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate; or

(i) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point
in time without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors
in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 14 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options may be
exercised at any time from the date of offer of the share option
to a date to be determined and notified by the directors or, in the
absence of such determination, the earlier of the date on which
the options lapse or the 10th anniversary of the date of grant.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the higher of the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant, the average closing price
of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant, and the nominal value of the Company shares.

There were no outstanding options granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption and at the end of the period.
In addition, there were no options granted to, or outstanding in
respect of the old share option scheme at the reporting date.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate. In addition, none of the directors, or their spouses
or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for
securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights during
the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS

So far as is known to the directors or chief executive of the
Company, the following persons (other than a director or chief
executive of the Company or their associates) who had an interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would fall to be disclosed
under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who
was directly and indirectly interested in ten per cent. or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member
the Group.

Interest in Underlying Shares

As at the date of this report

EEMARGREGFZERN

AR w) e E AR M8 A R R AE AR R EET
EMBEARBEEAHEBARR R SAEMEME
ABBZENEESMERZ ZHE < o FARE
T OREZEBRIBHEUA T FRGEEF AR
BARNRES BN - MKRFINETEEAZFE
e

FERFER
BARREEHTETRAEMA  BARRESEL
TETBRABHBEFZHEAN TIALTEAR
Rl EEMREEE (EE R B S MAEEPIEXVER)
ZBAn - MR REST - BEEREIESRAR
GRBIEBXVEPFE2 R B30 B2 EIRE 2 s ok =
FEEAFMEERMEENIRERNBER TERE
B EME K8 AR ZBERARE KRR ZAEMEHIR
AEEBED 2T LR -

RAAEIR 1D 2 2
KA E B 5

Number of  Approximate %
underlying  of shareholding

Name Capacity shares held interest
Fris LR RERL
HEEE g% HERAHE Bok
Billion Gain Development Limited BenechiaI owner 94,000,000 18.82
(Note 1) (Hfat 1) EnlEEA
Miss Beh Yong Shin (Note 1) Interest of controlled 94,000,000 18.82
AL NB (FYFE 1) __corporation
gz NG
Regal Power Investments Limited Benechial owner 88,500,000 17.72
(Note 2) (Ft:£2) EnEEA
Sinogreat Limited (Note 2) (ffat 2) Beneficial owner 60,000,000 12.01
EmEBA
Mr. Chan Yuen Ming (Note 2) Interest of controlled 148,500,000 29.74
PRI=EASE & (Hfat2) __corporation
e NG =
Joy Glory Limited (Note 3) (F#7%3) Beneficial owner 42,000,000 8.41
EmEBA
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph (Note 3) Interest of controlled 42,000,000 8.41

BEERSEE (HE3)

~_corporation
S VNCIE £

13



HyComm Wireless Limited o ZEIREZBIZERAA]

Report of the Directors

EEOHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS

(Continued)

Interest in Underlying Shares (Continued)

Notes:

1. Billion Gain Development Limited (“Billion Gain") is wholly and
beneficially owned by Miss Beh Yong Shin, who is also a director of
Billion Gain.

2. Regal Power Investments Limited and Sinogreat Limited is wholly

and beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yuen Ming, who is also a
director of both companies.

3. Joy Glory Limited (“Joy Glory”) is wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, who is also a director of Joy Glory.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the directors or chief
executive of the Company, the Company had not been notified
of any other interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the aggregate amount
of turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 15.2% of the Group’s total turnover
and the amount of turnover attributable to the largest customer
was approximately 5.2% of total turnover.

The Group had no purchases of trade goods during the year
ended 31 March 2014 and thus there were no major product
suppliers for the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) has any equity interests in any of
the Group's five largest customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the
Company has maintained a public float of its shares throughout
the year ended 31 March 2014 which exceeded the minimum
requirements of the Stock Exchange.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme for its
employees. Particulars of the provident fund scheme are set out in
note 24 to the financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

AUDITORS
KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd., Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
were first appointed as auditors of the Company in 2003.

KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd. retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the reappointment

of KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd. as auditors of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

LIU Shun Chuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2014
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The board of directors (the “Board”) recognises their mission to
create value and maximise returns on behalf of the shareholders
of the Company while at the same time fulfilling their corporate
responsibilities. Accordingly, the Company strives to promote and
uphold a balanced and high standard of corporate governance.

The Company has put in place corporate governance practices
to comply with all the provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited , except
for certain areas of non-compliance discussed later in this report,
during the year ended 31 March 2014.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by
the directors. The Company has made specific and reasonable
enquiries of all directors and is satisfied that they have complied
with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible to the shareholders and all directors
are collectively responsible for formulating the strategic business
direction of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and
setting objectives for management, overseeing performance and
assessing the effectiveness of management strategies.

The Directors

Currently, the Board comprises six directors, including two
executive directors, one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors. The biographical details
of the directors and senior management of the Company are
set out on pages 7 to 8 of this annual report. The composition
of the Board is well balanced with each director having sound
knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to the business
operations and development of the Group. All directors are aware
of their collective and individual responsibilities to shareholders
and have exercised their duties with care, skill and diligence and,
thereby, have contributed to the performance of the Group.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company
complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualification of
accounting or related financial management expertise. The Board
has received from each independent non-executive director an
annual confirmation of his independence and considers that all of
them are independent under the guidelines set out in Rules 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

16

Exg((Ex0 ) BREERAARBRAEER
MaRERNO®  RKETEEESEZ(E® -
Bt - RRBRRERF KRS FEFRBKEZ D

T-NF=ZA=FT—HIFE XRFD
XEABHR  NWEBTEBBEXSMER
%imiﬁﬁ'J(thiﬁﬁlJJ)Bﬁﬁ'f’@ﬁﬁ%i
AFRATA(RETA) ZMAERE R
MR B2 A TIREEERRIN o

B> M@l
Sy ol &
UPr ﬁ> ?ﬂ%‘ > | !

ETESXSNEETA
ARBCRMA EMRAM A EHARES
ETEF R ZIEESTR(M1EETR))  (FRE
SEEARAESF TRl - ARRE A2
EEFHARKAESH  UERAREINEE_
E-NFE=ZA=+—BLEFERA-BETEET
Al -

EXE

EEEMRREE MErEEFEEEaEH
SIARBINEMBAR ([AEE]) 2 £H R
O ORTEEEAE EREXRARIEEES

B 2 s -
S
BAl BEEEAGEEAN  REMANTE

B BMTEER=BBEURTEFT - A
NABEZRLGRERE HMAREHNAFR
FIEE  -EFENHAERNDY  BREFH
AREAEEXBLEREREBIEEHME
@%ﬁ&/igﬁ EREFHNBREHRRA
HREKENEENEE BE—BERE AROR
HRREWBEOTRENBE  AMBAEEMZE
BIEHEERHR -

BE_ZT-NMF=—A=1T—BLFEAN &R

—EL—H:FH%EH‘J%B 10(1) % 3.10(2 )1|7KEF'§§E
EL=ZRRUFNTESR (AP KL —RBIIFH
TEFAARMBEEXESTARIAAMEERE
ERIZHTE BFGCEERSBUIFNTESRZ
FEBULGDHERE  URR/DEBIUIFNTE
SR ETARIZE 313 RATEIE S M S BB -



Annual Report 2014 o 2014 3R

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board reviews the performance of the operating divisions
against their agreed targets and budgets on a regular basis and
also exercises a number of reserved powers, including but not
limited to:

o formulating long-term strategies;
° setting objectives for management;

o approving public announcements including the interim and
annual financial statements;

o setting dividend and other important policies;
o approving material borrowings and treasury policies; and

o assessing and committing to major acquisitions, disposals,
formation of joint ventures and capital transactions.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company for each financial year and ensuring
that these give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group, its results and cash flows for that period. The directors
are also responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records
which will accurately reflect the financial position of the Group are
maintained at all times.

All directors have full access to accurate, relevant and timely
information of the Group and are able to obtain independent
professional advice on issues whenever deemed necessary.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Group. Every director is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, relevant materials
including regulatory updates have been provided to the directors
for their reference and study.
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A summary of training received by directors according to the
records provided by the directors is as follows:

RIBEFMBHES  EFCEXEI2HEN
T

Training on corporate governance,
regulatory development and

Director = other relevant topics
EHLEES  ROBER
Hith i8R = RE M Z I

Executive Directors HITEE

Liu Shun Chuen B2 4

Yeung Sau Chung 1575 H v/

Non-executive Director FHEMITEFE

Kong Lingbiao HeE v

Independent Non-executive Directors BB ITEE

Ng Wai Hung RohIE v/

Wu Wang Li RIZTE 4

Jacobsen William Keith Jacobsen William Keith v

Board Meetings Exaeel

Directors are consulted on matters to be included in the agenda
for Board meetings and have access to advice and services to
ensure that Board meeting procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. At least 14 days formal notice is to be
given before each regular meeting is held. For special meetings,
reasonable notice is given. The Company held four Board
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2014.

Save as an employment contract with Mr. Kong Lingbiao at
salary of HK$240,000 per annum, there are no service contracts
with any director and all members of the Board are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election according to the bye-laws
of the Company.

Audit Committee

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Wu Wang Li (Chairman), Mr.
Jacobsen William Keith and Mr. Ng Wai Hung. The written terms
of reference for the Audit Committee were reviewed on 29 March
2012.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group's
financial information, overseeing the Group's financial
reporting systems and internal control procedures and for
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and/or removal of the external auditors, including
approving their remuneration and terms of engagement.

18

EEQ AR FAKKRESREE ME
FHANEERMRE  HREFSERREFN
MBEBRRAEKIHESET  SEHS
ZOHAABRHEDI4RERNBMN - A5 HIE
ZOH AEHAEBEN BE_T-NF=A
=+—BLEFE  ARABRTOAEESEH

PRIz F 8" 240,000 TR ASELRERI L 2B
BAEKIN  ARARWEEEMNEETLRBEL -
MBBEARF 2 ARAA EES2BKRENA
WERTIAEREE-

EREES

BAl BEREEeH =R B I IENITESRAK - B
REABAE A (EFE) ~ Jacobsen William Keith %t 4
MEREWLE  BERZESVERANESE DN =
T-—F=ZA=F+hBEH-

ERZESRAFNAKENMBER  EEA
SER SRR ERABEEREF  RERE
BN/ RERIEEEMAEESREZE
H o B R LA SN AZ BEM Y BN 2 Ko B A AR



Annual Report 2014 o 2014 3R

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
advising on the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group together with overseeing the auditing, financial reporting
processes and internal control systems of the Group, including
reviews of the Group’s interim and annual reports.

The Audit Committee held two meetings for the year ended 31
March 2014. During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Audit
Committee reviewed the final results for the year ended 31 March
2013 with the external auditors and the interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2013 before recommending them to
the Board for approval.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 March 2012.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Ng
Wai Hung (Chairman), Mr. Wu Wang Li and Mr. Jacobsen William
Keith.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

(@  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policies and structure for all director and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy;

(b)  to review and approve management remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

() to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, such as compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(d to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

(e) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitments and responsibilities and employment
conditions within the Group;

(f)  to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(9) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

(h)  to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 29 March 2012.
The Nomination Committee comprises four members, one of
whom is an executive director, namely, Mr. Liu Shun Chuen
(Chairman) and three of whom are independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Wu Wang Li, Mr. Ng Wai Hung and Mr.
Jacobsen William Keith.

The duties of the Nomination Committee include:

(@) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c)  to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(d)  make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee has a policy concerning the diversity
of board members (the “Policy”). Pursuant to the Policy, in
reviewing the Board'’s diversity, the Board will consider including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. New directors, being individuals who are
suitably qualified and expected to make a positive contribution to
the performance of the Board and having regards to the criteria
stated in the Policy, are identified and submitted to the Board or
shareholders for approval either to fill vacancies on the Board or
to be appointed as additional directors.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee are available on the Company’s website:
http://www.hycomm-wireless.com.
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Details of the attendance of individual director at board meetings,
committee meetings and the annual general meeting during the
year ended 31 March 2014 are set out in the table below:

BE_ZT-NF-A=+—"BLFE SE=%f
AMFEFEEE ZESQRMBERBEFAE
M ISR Tk ¢

No. of meetings attended/held

g/ BTEERE
Annual
Board Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General
Members of the Board Ezgn8 Meetings ~ Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
Ezgg ERZEE §MZEE REZEE REEFAE
Executive directors HITEE
Liu Shun Chuen B2 4/4 — — — n
Yeung Sau Chung AP 4/4 — — — I
Non-executive director IHTEF
Kong Lingbiao 12E 4/4 — - 171 171
Independent non-executive directors BUFNITEE
Wu Wang Li RiohE 44 212 "N 11 0N
Ng Wai Hung RER 444 22 17 171 171
Jacobsen William Keith Jacobsen William Keith 4/4 2/2 " 11 0N

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has not engaged an external service provider as
its company secretary. The biographical details of the company
secretary of the Company is set out on page 8 of this annual
report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To request to convene a special general meeting, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitioners themselves may do so in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda. For details refer to the bye-laws of the Company.
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Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the company secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

HyComm Wireless Limited

Unit 1406, 14/F., The Broadway,

54-62 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 3914 8130

Email: service@hycomm-wireless.com

Shareholders may also direct enquiries to the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
OF THE COMPANY

There were no significant changes in constitutional documents of
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2014.

DEVIATIONS FROM THE CODE ON CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Company has complied with the CG Code except for the
deviations as set out below.

CG Code provision A.4.1 states that non-executive directors
should be appointed for specific terms. All non-executive directors
of the Company are appointed without any specific term.
According to the Company’s bye-laws, at every annual general
meeting, one-third of the directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. The
Board considers that sufficient measures, such as this, are taken
to ensure the corporate governance practices of the Company are
not less exacting than those in the CG Code.

CG Code provision A.6.7 stipulated that the independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings. Two independent non-executive
directors were absent from the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 22 August 2013 (the "AGM") due to their
other important engagements.

To ensure compliance with the CG Code in the future, the
Company will arrange to furnish all Directors with appropriate
information on all general meetings and take all reasonable
measures to arrange the schedule that all Directors (including the
Chairman) can attend the general meetings.

The Board continues to review the corporate governance status of

the Company from time to time and make any necessary changes
to comply with the CG Code as and when considered appropriate.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the total remuneration for
audit services provided by the external auditor, KLC Kennic Lui &
Co. Ltd., amounted to approximately HK$595,000. The audit fee
was approved by the Board and the Audit Committee.

The re-appointment of KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd. as auditor of
the Company has been recommended by the Audit Committee
and endorsed by the Board and is subject to approval by the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The responsibilities
of the directors are to oversee the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for each financial period which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of its results
and cash flows for that period. The directors have to ensure
that the consolidated financial statements of the Group are in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards, adjustments and estimates made are prudent, fair and
reasonable and the consolidated financial statements are prepared
on a going concern basis. The directors also acknowledge that the
publication of the financial statements of the Group should be
made in a timely manner.

The statement of the auditors regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 25 and 26.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring sound
and effective internal control systems for the Group are in place
to safequard the assets of the Company at all times. The systems
of internal control also aim to help achieve the Group’s business
objectives by maintaining proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information. It is recognised that the
systems provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement in the financial statements or loss of assets
and help to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure when
business objectives are being pursued.

Reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control systems
covering all material controls in the financial, operational and
compliance areas including coverage of the risk management
functions as well as physical assets and information systems
security were conducted during the year. The Audit Committee
was reported to in respect of key findings identified in respect
of such reviews and, in turn, reported all material issues and
recommendations, if any and as appropriate, to the Board. It
also considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience in the Group's accounting and financial reporting
function and the training programmes and budgets involved.
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The external auditors reviewed and documented the internal
control systems of the Group. Certain relevant recommendations
made by the external auditors have since been implemented by
the Group in stages together with subsequent improvements,
if any, made by the Board to further enhance internal control
policies, procedures and practices.

The Board has concluded that the Group's overall systems of

internal control were functioning during the year, and will
continue to improve the operation of the systems in the future.
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B A BEN R

KL

EREEHBEBRAERLA
KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd.

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

To the shareholders of
HyComm Wireless Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
HyComm Wireless Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 27 to 98, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of the report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2014 and of the Group's profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd.

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Choy Po Fong

Practising Certificate No.: PO4688

Hong Kong, 30 June 2014
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GmeEakAMEZEBREHREK

(Year ended 31 March 2014) (B2 =Z— W& =-_A=1+—HItFE)

2014 2013
L LES —E-=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
Htax BT T BT
Turnover SR 5 9,122 9,338
Revaluation gains on investment properties EMEEHRE 12 5,713 1,100
Other revenue HAb YA 6 1,984 1,676
Other losses, net H b E518F 58 6 (4,271) -
Operating costs R (12,120) (13,014)
Profit/(loss) from operations Ea ), (E18) 428 (900)
Share of profits/(losses) of joint ventures FE(E & &R, (E8) 15 203 (432)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BELRDER, (E58) 7 631 (1,332)
Taxation 18 8 134 -
Profit/(loss) for the year REERR(EE) 765 (1,332)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AEEFEHMEEBA(EHE)
for the year
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently HErgeEF»BEEER
to profit or loss: 2R :
Available-for-sale financial assets: AEEEM B ERE
— Change in fair values during the year —AEEZA $TE """"" %) 4,622 (2,340)
— Realisation of change in fair value — HERSENFTEE
on disposal 1,218 -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FEEHMEEERA
for the year, net of tax (&518) - MBRHIE 5,840 (2,340)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) KEEZEBA
for the year (F518) 8 5 6,605 (3,672)
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meEBEmRHMEERERK @

(Year ended 31 March 2014) (B2 = —WWF A =+—HIFE)

2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
HiaE BT T BT
Profit/(loss) attributable to: THFEER, (BR) :
Equity holders of the Company A RS AR R 713 (1,414)
Non-controlling interests eI 52 82
Profit/(loss) for the year REEERN,(FE) 765 (1,332)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) THFEZEBRA(EE)
attributable to: e
Equity holders of the Company RR B R R 6,553 (3,754)
Non-controlling interests SEE R R 52 82
Total comprehensive income/(loss) REEZEKRA
for the year (F518) 8 5 6,605 (3,672)
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to AATEEZRREGELAEE
equity holders of the Company SREF,(EE)
for the year (expressed in HK cents) (7&4L) 11
Basic E K 0.14 (0.28)
Diluted e N/A & A N/A 738 F

The notes on pages 36 to 98 form part of these financial

statements.
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e MR R R

(At 31 March 2014) (R=B—mE=A=+—0)

2014 2013
—EF-nmE —T=%F
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
M et BT JEMET T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties wEME 12 81,600 126,100
Property, plant and equipment ME - HES K ERE 13 11 116
Interest in joint ventures REEEER 15 28,668 18,711
Available-for-sale financial assets A EMIFEE 16 1,811 4,989
112,090 149,916
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables J7E ST BR 3% N L th e W Fh 1B 17 9,539 20,551
Cash and cash equivalents HeRZERRSER 198,032 141,671
207,571 162,222
Current liabilities =R
Other payables and accrued H AR FRIE M BT E A
charges 18 1,032 733
Income tax payable P ETS R 10 -
1,042 733
Net current assets REBEEFE 206,529 161,489
Total assets less current HEERTRBHARS
liabilities 318,619 311,405
Non-current liabilities kREBEME
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEAE 19 861 252
861 252
Net assets EERE 317,758 311,153

29



HyComm Wireless Limited o ZEIREZBIZERAA]

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e B AR R R R ®)

(At31 March 2014) (R=—Z—mWE=A=+—H)

2014 2013
= Lk =%
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
HiaE B FT BT T
Capital and reserves EAXKf#HE

Share capital [N 20 49,928 49,928
Reserves HiE 267,634 261,081

Total equity attributable to equity AT ERRREN
holders of the Company ERBE 317,562 311,009
Non-controlling interests IR R 196 144
Total equity RSB 317,758 311,153

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30

June 2014.

The notes on pages 36 to 98 form part of these financial

statements.
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BAEE AR AR

(At31 March 2014) (R=—ZE—mE=A=+—H)

2014 2013
—=E—-MF —E—=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Hat BT T BT T

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER Y B 13 11 16
Interests in subsidiaries RETB ARz #Ex 14 60,086 115,477
60,097 115,493

Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b U GRIE 17 365 339
Cash and cash equivalents BeMERRELIER 193,660 127,066
194,025 127,405
Current liabilities =R

Other payables and accrued charges H AT R0E R BT B A 18 572 566
Net current assets REBEEFE 193,453 126,839
Net assets BEEFE 253,550 242,332

Capital and reserves EARR#E
Share capital P& 20 49,928 49,928
Reserves (G 21 203,622 192,404
Total equity ST 253,550 242,332

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30
June 2014.

Liu Shun Chuen
B2
Director

EE

The notes on pages 36 to 98 form part of these financial
statements.
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Director
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meEnBEX

(Year ended 31 March 2014) (BBE—Z—NF=A=+—HIFE)

Surplus  Fair value Non-
Share Share  account reserve Accumulated controlling
capital  premium (notei)  (noteii) losses Total interests Total
BER AVERE FER
Bx  RHEE GED ) 2itER EoHY Ei @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000
BEFT  BEFT  AETT BT EETT BT BETT  EET
Balance at 1 April 2012 R-B--&
MA—Be&s 49,928 143,807 255,025 (4,368) (129,629) 314,763 62 314,825
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit/(loss) for the year AEEEF/(B8) - - - - (1,414) (1,414) 82 (1332)
Other comprehensive loss Hi2EEE
Change in fair value of HEENBEE
available-for-sale financial assets ATEZE - - - (2,340) - (2,340) - (2,340)
Total other comprehensive loss Hin2EEELR - - - (2,340) - (2,340) - (2,340)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EK A /(Ei8) &8 - - - (2,340) (1,414) (3,754) 82 (3,672)
Balance at 31 March 2013 and R-E-=f
1 April 2013 ZA=t+-BK
ZE-ZEMA-H
P 49,928 143,807 255,025 (6,708) (131,043) 311,009 144 311,153
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year REE &R - - - - 713 713 52 765
Other comprehensive income Htt2EWA
Change in fair value of HEENBEE
available-for-sale financial assets AFEZE - - - 4,622 - 4,622 - 4,622
Realisation of change in HETREENEEER
fair value on disposal of SEATEEY
available-for-sale financial assets - - - 1,218 - 1,218 - 1218
Total other comprehensive income RO - - - 5,840 - 5,840 - 5,840
Total comprehensive income 2EBALE - - - 5,840 713 6,553 52 6,605
Balance at 31 March 2014 R-E-mE
ZA=t-Az&H% 49,928 143,807 255,025 (868) (130,330) 317,562 196 317,758
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
MEEREE R @

(Year ended 31 March 2014) (B2 =Z— W& =-_A=1+—HItFE)

Notes: 5T
The surplus account represents the difference between the nominal . BEREARTAETRA Z BERKRRAIRE
amount of the share capital issued by the Company and the —NANEFETZEESHEMKE—RHBARDE
aggregate of the nominal amount of the issued share capital and FTIRATEE N Bt A s BR AN R 2 22 58 o

other reserve accounts of a subsidiary which was acquired by the
Company pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 1997.

i The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the . NP ERBENREREEREAFIHEEMKE
fair value of available-for-sale financial assets held at the end of the ERATERGEEHFE-

reporting period.

The notes on pages 36 to 98 form part of these financial %#36% 988 2 W AILEHEHREEFTIS o
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

(Year ended 31 March 2014) (B2 = —WWF A =+—HIFE)

2014 2013
—E—0mF —E-=fF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
Cash flows from operating activities REXBABRERE
Profit/(loss) before taxation BBiRTE R (EE) 631 (1,332)
Adjustments for: AT EIBEFAE -
Revaluation gains on investment properties REMESE AW (5,713) (1,100)
Depreciation e 16 23
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEENEERE
financial assets 2§58 1,218 -
Net loss on sale of investment properties HEREYSHE T R F5E 2,959 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  MERREZER
equipment 94 _
Interest income FEWA (1,984) (1,672)
Share of (profits)/losses of joint ventures e EDECEN) /BB (203) 432
Operating loss before changes in RETEEESEHRILLEE
working capital (2,982) (3,649)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JFE Y BR 30 N Eoib B Y FR0E
other receivables () 11,208 (4,862)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and Hip e ZIE R E & A
accrued charges #mn,/ CR) 260 (476)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations BEBATE,(FIfE) Re 8,486 (8,987)
Income tax paid BT SR (18) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) RS ERE(Ff)
operating activities REFE 8,468 (8,987)

34



Annual Report 2014 o 2014 3R

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

MEHERER @)

(Year ended 31 March 2014) (B2 =Z— W& =-_A=1+—HItFE)

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Mrat BT T BT
Cash flows from investing activities REXZKFBRERE
Proceeds from disposal of e ftise Eﬁﬁé@ﬁﬁ@%’(
available-for-sale financial assets 7,800 -
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREMENSEHIE
properties 115,841 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment & A#2 - 125 N 38 & (5) (88)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BE b B A7) 22 (67,869) -
Capital contributed to joint ventures MEERETE (11,457) (19,139)
Repayment from joint ventures BEDEEN 1,239 -
Dividends received from joint ventures BRAEETERE 460 -
Interest income received B S A 1,884 1,721
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEKIRE(F#)RETE
investing activities 47,893 (17,506)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERERRESHEE M
cash equivalents (R2) B4 56,361 (26,493)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning £ zREREFREER
of the year 141,671 168,164
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRZ2ESRZERRLER
the year 198,032 141,671
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents BRE&RZREBLEEDH
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERE 6,046 5,002
Deposits with banks within three months R =188 R T H > RT3
of maturity 191,986 136,669
198,032 141,671

The notes on pages 36 to 98 form part of these financial %#36% 988 2 W AILEHEHREEFTIS o
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

(Year ended 31 March 2014) (B2 = —WWF A =+—HIFE)

1. GENERAL 1. iS58

The Company is a public limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section of the annual report.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of
the subsidiaries are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

ARBPR/PRAFREAMERLZ ARBEREER
A EROESEBSRZAAERLDR (B
Fl) B e RABZAMPERR T 2EEM
BhZ MULNEF AR B ER —EHIKE -

MBEMRAR DRI N EEEBRZS

ARRIZ EBEBRIEER

HB AR Z

TEEXBRNEMENBENTERERME29 -

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES EEEEBR
(a) Statement of compliance (a) E¥EBH

36

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which is a collective
term that includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosures
provision of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

MBmRDBEMBERBEM B RS
EA([HFEMBRSER] > BEEES
AR ARG ([EB GRS ) B 2P
BEREMNERYBREER  FES
sHERI(TEB gL ] kag) B8
NREFTRAREE R AMED 2 RER
EMmE - MHBHRRTTEEEBER
AR ARES ETRANZEAKE
BE - AEERMNZ IS HEME
BRI e

BEGMAGERMAETRAEE R
ARRTIRITE SHHI R &R A e AT R
BRM A MRIER] B BN B RE R
A ME3RHEARMRMBIRRAMKR
BRRNBITRBESHRTAERZF
KRB AR 2 R P S BEM & 5K
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

(Year ended 31 March 2014) (B2 =Z— W& =-_A=1+—HItFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2014 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and
the Group's interest in joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair values
as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— investment properties (see note 2(e))

— financial instruments classified as available-for-
sale (see note 2(g))

Other non-current assets are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised if the revisions affect only that
period, or in the period of the revisions and future
periods if the revisions affects both current and future
periods.

Judgments made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

2.

FEEBER®

(b)
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BTSRRI EE

(Year ended 31 March 2014) (B2 = —WWF A =+—HIFE)

2.

38

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity holders of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
changes in relative interests, but no adjustments
are made to goodwill and no gains or losses are
recognised.

2.
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BTSRRI EE

(Year ended 31 March 2014) (B2 =Z— W& =-_A=1+—HItFE)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interest

(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 2(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture (see note 2(d)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(i)).

Joint Ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group's share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment losses relating to the investment (see
notes 2(i)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group's share of post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the year
and the Group’s share of post-acquisition post-tax
items of the investees’ other comprehensive income
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

2.

FEEBER®
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(Year ended 31 March 2014) (B2 = —WWF A =+—HIFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(d) Joint Ventures (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the joint ventures, the Group’s interests are reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group's
long-term interests that in substance form part of the

Group’s net investment in the joint ventures.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit

or loss.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date
when joint control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an

associate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in joint ventures are stated at cost less

impairment losses (see note 2(i)).

40
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(Year ended 31 March 2014) (B2 =Z— W& =-_A=1+—HItFE)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

()

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under leasehold interests to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any
gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in
note 2(p)(i).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than investment
properties, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(i)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method at
the following rates per annum:

20%
20%

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixture and equipment

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.
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2.

42

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(g) Other investments in debt and equity

securities

The Group's and the Company’s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, are as
set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and
that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability or
based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently accounted
for, depending on their classification, as set out below:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gains or losses being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any interest or dividends
earned on these investment as these are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out in note 2(p)(ii)
and (iii).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention to
hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated in the
statement of financial position at amortised cost less
impairment losses.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are recognised
in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities (Continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of monetary items
such as debt securities which are recognised directly in
profit or loss. Dividend income from these investments
is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
the policy set out in note 2(p)(iii) and, where these
investments are interest bearing, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in
note 2(p)(ii). When these investments are derecognised
or impaired, the cumulative gain or loss is classified
from equity to profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or
they expire.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which
do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.

2.
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2.

i

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

(i) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables
Investments in debt and equity securities and
other current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

2.

FEEBERE

(hy HEZHEM®)

(i)

RBEHEA
WAREHEALERORTEEZ
A REBBEOELZEFTIA
Bk W FHHBERMRE
ZERTHIMA - HERAEMEEE R
REHEEBEEMGHNE 2 EAR SR
Rl - DWEZ HEEEN B
ERAFHETREE L D -
IAEENEE 2 EHHMEEER
OBR ©

() EERME

(i)

BEBERKREIZEFREUR R MEYK
B Z B
AEERZHREMEEREEHND
BRRATEERANRKE DR
A E RS 2 BB RRARFR
B A Ko Ho A B HR Ko 3F B HA 8 U R
B NEEELRERERE - &
BREZEBEERASERMANETHRE
AT —IBZIARIEER 2 A B
g -

— EBARBRERMBREE

— BRAH wmmERIEHE
BB HAR

— ERATRERESETTEM
s EA

— B W5 KBEIERR
REEREABEEEA
BRATNEE &

— BRATAREBEZRXFEKE
THREEREKAREHRE
TRELRAR



Annual Report 2014 o 2014 3R

Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

(Year ended 31 March 2014) (B2 =Z— W& =-_A=1+—HItFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. XEEHEE®
(Continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) EERE®E
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and () EERREIFBFREEURIMERK
equity securities and other receivables Bz ()
(Continued)

W EAIL FEBRTE - ERER
BIEAT T AEE MR

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in joint ventures
accounted for under the equity method
(see note 2(d)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note 2(i)(ii).
The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount
in accordance with note 2(i)(ii).

For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.
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2.

46

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

0]

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables
(Continued)

— For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in
profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill,
an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— prepaid interests in leasehold land
classified as being held under an operating
lease;

— intangible assets;
— goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures in the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
Impairment of other assets (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
impairment losses are reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. Impairment losses in respect of
goodwill are not reversed.

Reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

0]

@

(k)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim Financial Reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale
equity securities and unquoted equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end
of the financial year to which the interim period
relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an
available-for-sale equity security increases in the
remainder of the annual period, or in any other
period subsequently, the increase is recognised
in other comprehensive income and not profit or
loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less any allowances for impairment of doubtful debts,
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 2(o)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

(ij) Defined contribution retirement plan

obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Scheme”), under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of
its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the Scheme. The assets of the Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s contributions as employer vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the
Scheme.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(n) Taxation

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences, respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deducible for tax purposes
and the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Taxation (Continued)

When the investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 2(e), the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that would
apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at
the reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and is
reduced to the extent it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i)  Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

2.

FEEBERE

(n)

(o)

BLIE ()

IR EMERBERINNME2e) 2 &5
BERAERPEIE  CERZELH
BLEEANRE B RREEAELEZ
FEEZBERAREFE  RIFXMERE
TIHE  WREBNAKERE(MIFEE
HE) FERARBD M E e 2 B IR APT
A - EMBEMBERT  CHRBZE
RBRBECENDREENBBEREEZE
HBRSBETAREE  RANKS
HA ) 6 SRS B R 0 S B RR R 2 TR R 5
B BEEVBAEENRAGBENTRE -

EFETR IR & B IR (E X S B 45 R
=M WHETBRIEA RS RT®
B ARG EZBERT TR
o AR A RN E AT e AR R SE
AREUE M 2 BT T AZE -

EEHMBER BRERIREE

(i) EFLABER
FITS RIS B A (BIERA)
HERZBA(HEADESER
BARBERIZER T AR RS
RNRMRE 28K AEEAE
MRERBZEHL

AR E T BB ER - ZERZ
RFE(NZZER  RIFZRTF
ERER] SEfh st B S 1R BGR ) ¥ 2
BRI AR B A BN IR A 2
RN o W FE3E 2 ERES B IR
Bk AR E - ZRESREE
M ZEEER 2 NEBBER T A
TSR o im0 M 2 M Sk R W AR(E - R
R R AR AR - KB
= NIERENEF X o



Annual Report 2014 o 2014 3R

Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

(Year ended 31 March 2014) (B2 =Z— W& =-_A=1+—HItFE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(o) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 2(o)(iii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the
amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade
and other payables in respect of that guarantee
i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at
the date of acquisition are initially recognised
at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition
at fair value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would
be determined in accordance with note 2(o)
(iii). Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued
or were not present obligations at the date of
acquisition are disclosed in accordance with note

2(o)(iii).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

FEEHBE
(o) BELHMBER BRERIRKE

54

(o) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)
(iii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

(p) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:
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(i)  Rental income from operating leases (i) KEHEZHLKA
Rental income, including rentals invoiced in He W ABERELEHERL 2
advance from properties let under operating MEBREZRSE - DRESER
leases, is recognised on the straight-line basis 1ARATEHR A RERR -
over the terms of the relevant leases.

(ii) Interest income (i) FIEKA

Interest income from a financial asset excluding
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

BHEE(TEERATEF AR
B2 MBEE) 2N B WA TIIRR
RREEE  WREREEASEN
RWERERNEAE - ZNE5HK
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(p) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii) Dividends
—  Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established.

—  Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(q) Translation of foreign currencies

(r)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.
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—OE=ZA=+—HLFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(r) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary, and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (for an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts for each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.

2.
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58

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Of these following developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements.

R REBITEEMGRELER

BRI ASEREMEZERAEERARF

SRR B RERZ AT BB EHREER
REBMEMEEL 2ER]  HRIATRIRE
REBHBREAR -

HKAS 1 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 1 BESHENE 1R (B7]) BALTENF 1R 2B
Presentation of Financial BEHFxER— ,ﬁi‘/ﬂ?
Statements — Presentation of PENEEEEH
Items of Other Comprehensive
Income

HKFRS 7 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 7 ERUBREEL BENBRERAETH
Financial Instruments: FT5(1BE) BIIGEIA :
Disclosures — Offsetting BE—BBIKEE
Financial Assets and RIBEE
Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements EEMRREELE 0% Z; BB iRE

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements ERURFERAENS BALH

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in EANBREENE 12 REAMEBIEZRE

Other Entities

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 Amendments to HKFRS 10, BAMBREENE 0% - BRAVBREEUE 05
and HKFRS 12 HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 — EBH RS ER ERUBREERNE 115
Amendments Transition Guidance BNFREBYH RBEBUBREES

HEERE 125 (157]) BNR B —EERES

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement ERNERSENENBE  AFEHE

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits EREHERE19% ESEF

(ZF——%)
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and EAGERE 8% RBERTRAELZIRE
Joint Ventures (ZE2——F)

Annual Improvements  Amendments to a number of EBUBREEN-TEAE NCB-—ERAEBZET
to HKFRSs HKFRSs issued in June 2012 ZIE—FREEE BAUNBREED BT
2009-2011 Cycle i

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs do not have
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

R a] M AERT BB 15 S 22 B S 3 5%
EUBHRREREAPBTE -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Impacts of the adoption of new or amended HKFRSs are
discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments require entities to present separately
the items of other comprehensive income that would be
reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions
are met from those that would never be reclassified to
profit or loss. The presentation of other comprehensive
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in these financial statements
has been modified accordingly. In addition, the Group has
chosen to use the new title “statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income” as introduced by the
amendments in these financial statements.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements relating to
the preparation of consolidated financial statements and
HK-SIC 12 Consolidation — Special purpose entities. It
introduces a single control model to determine whether an
investee should be consolidated, by focusing on whether
the entity has power over the investee, exposure or rights
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and the ability to use its power to affect the amount of
those returns. As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the
Group has changed its accounting policy with respect to
determining whether it has control over an investee. The
adoption does not change any of the control conclusions
reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with
other entities as at 1 April 2013.

3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

HKFRS 11, which replaces HKAS 31, Interests in joint
ventures, divides joint arrangements into joint operations and
joint ventures. Entities are required to determine the type
of an arrangement by considering the structure, legal form,
contractual terms and other facts and circumstances relevant
to their rights and obligations under the arrangement.
Joint arrangements which are classified as joint operations
under HKFRS 11 are recognised on a line-by-line basis to the
extent of the joint operator’s interest in the joint operation.
All other joint arrangements are classified as joint ventures
under HKFRS 11 and are required to be accounted for using
the equity method in the group’s consolidated financial
statements. Proportionate consolidation is no longer allowed
as an accounting policy choice. As a result of the adoption
of HKFRS 11, the Group has changed its accounting policy
with respect to its interests in joint arrangements and re-
evaluated its involvement in its joint arrangements. The
Group has reclassified the investment from jointly controlled
entities to joint ventures. The investment continues to be
accounted for using the equity method and therefore this
reclassification does not have any material impact on the
financial position and the financial result of the Group.

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests
in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures required
by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than those
previously required by the respective standards. To the
extent that the requirements are applicable to the Group,
the Group has provided those disclosures in notes 14 and
15.

3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs
with a single source of fair value measurement guidance.
HKFRS 13 also contains extensive disclosure requirements
about fair value measurements for both financial
instruments and non-financial instruments. To the extent
that the requirements are applicable to the Group, the
Group has provided those disclosures in notes 12 and 27(e).
The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any material
impact on the fair value measurements of the Group's assets
and liabilities.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group'’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the accounting
judgement set out below.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Group recognises provisions for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability. As at 31 March 2014, the Group
considered that it had no disclosable contingent
liabilities as there were neither pending litigation nor
events with potential obligation which were likely to
result in material outflow of economic benefits from
the Group.

3.
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4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)
(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer. In determining the fair value, the
valuer has made the valuation on the assumption
that the owner sells the property in the open market
without the benefit of any deferred term contract,
leaseback, joint venture, management agreement or
any similar arrangement which would serve to increase
the value of the property.

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group manages its diversified businesses according to
the nature of services provided. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following four identified
reportable segments.

62

Leasing of properties: this segment mainly leases
residential, industrial and commercial premises
to generate rental income and to gain from the
appreciation in the property values in the long term.
Currently, the Group’s investment property portfolio is
located entirely in Hong Kong.

Property investments: this segment mainly holds
commercial properties to gain from appreciation in
property values. Currently this investment property
portfolio is located entirely in Hong Kong.

Carpark management: this segment mainly sub-
leases carparks to generate rental income. Currently,
the Group's carpark operations are located entirely in
Hong Kong.

Loan financing: this segment provides lending to
personal and corporate customers. Currently, the
Group possesses a money lender license and its money
lending business is mainly carried out in Hong Kong.

4.
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5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 ZEXEERSBEIHR B
(Continued)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) oHEE BERAEE

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group's senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the bases set out below.

The measurement basis used for reporting segment
results is adjusted profit before net finance costs,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation (adjusted
EBITDA). Items not specifically attributable to individual
segments, such as losses on disposals of available-for-
sale financial assets, revaluation gains of investment
properties and unallocated operating expenses are
further adjusted and excluded from segment results.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of investments
in financial assets and other unallocated corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include other payables
and accrued charges attributable to the leasing of
properties, property investments, carpark management
and loan financing of the individual segments.

SAFZ D BRI RIS AR D BB IR T
5 ARESEREEEABRTXAH
AEEEREERAZ/OBIESE  BE
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ERDEEREMAGFEEERRAMF
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5.

64

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(Continued)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)
Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments by reference to sales generated and the
expenses incurred by those segments.

EXTERSBEHE)

(a) oHHE BEREEREGE)

WA KR TR ] 23 /P 4 KA YR

ZHEBMAXDEERMEYE -

Leasing of Property Carpark Loan
properties investments management financing Total
NEHE NERE  PESER ENRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBTR BRTR BRTR BBTR BBTR
2014 “E-NF
Reportable segment revenue S VgL ON
Revenue from external customers REMBEPIRA 783 - 6,718 1,621 9,122
Reportable segment profit/(loss) ~ T2HHHERN / (5Fi8)

(adjusted EBITDA) (& REEBITDA) 23 203 (254) 1,221 1,193
Interest income from bank deposits ROFZAEMA 1 - - 93 94
Revaluation gains on investment REMEE RN

properties 5713 - - - 5713
Reportable segment assets T2HAREE
Investment properties RENE 81,600 - - - 81,600
Interest in joint ventures INSY AT PA o - 28,668 - - 28,668
Trade and other receivables TR T b R U 0B 97 - 524 8,441 9,062
Cash and cash equivalents BeRERESER 1,873 - 1,043 780 3,696
Reportable segment liabilities EHIHEE
Other payables and accrued charges — Eft R FIERE B (378) - (36) (16) (430)
Deferred tax liabilities ELHEGRE (861) - - - (861)
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5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 EX#ERSBEH B

(Continued)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) oHEE BERBEE)
(Continued)
Leasing of Property Carpark Loan
properties investments  management financing Total
NERE NERE  FEBEE ENRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
2013 —E-=%
Reportable segment revenue TEHFBRA
Revenue from external customers REMPERIA 19 - 6,662 2,480 9,338
Reportable segment profit/(loss)  T2HAH%RF,/(BE)

(adjusted EBITDA) ({82 EBITDA) (519) (432) (44) 2,030 1,035
Interest income from bank deposits ~ FTEZFBMA - - - 12 12
Share of losses of joint ventures ElEAZMNEER - (432) - - (432)
Revaluation gains on investment REMEE MR

properties 1,100 - - - 1,100
Reportable segment assets 2HIHEE
Investment properties RENE 126,100 - - - 126,100
Property, plant and equipment ME - EBNEE 101 - - - 101
Interest in joint ventures REBPEVBS - 18,711 - - 18,711
Trade and other receivables MR R A e 0B 36 - 392 19,694 20,122
Cash and cash equivalents BeLERBELER 354 - 2,644 10,930 13,928
Reportable segment liabilities 2RI HEE
Other payables and accrued charges HiENTBREER (77 - (47) (15) (139)
Deferred tax liabilities EERERE (252) - - - (252)
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5.

66

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. ZBXf#RS3EFHE)
(Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

(c)

(b) TEHSWUA - B -EERE

revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities BZHER
2014 2013
—E-lEF —E—=%F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BHFT BT T
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue EEELETON 9,122 9,338
Profit or loss B
Reportable segment profit Al 23D 20 1,193 1,035
Elimination of inter-segment expenses 23 B P A =2 £ 8 1,676 1,472
Other revenue HA A 1,984 1,676
Revaluation gains on investment properties KEYEERINE 5,713 1,100
Losses on disposal of available-for-sale HERHIEEN KB ERE
financial assets 2B (1,218) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE « MBENERE
equipment it (94) -
Net loss on disposal of investment properties HEREYE Y B8 %5 (2,959) -
Unallocated operating expenses FOMAERE (5.664) (6,615)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before taxation B RT4RE
wH, (51 631 (1,332)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets A RRoEEE 123,026 178,962
Unallocated assets KOBCEE 196,635 133,176
Consolidated total assets MEBERE 319,661 312,138
Liabilities af&
Reportable segment liabilities AEHROMBAEE (1,291) (391
Unallocated liabilities KOBBE (612) 594)
Consolidated total liabilities e aEBE (1,903) (985)
Geographic information (0 HWEER
The Group only operated in a single geographical AEBERE— MR —EBEEER

location, that is, Hong Kong. On this basis, no

BB AFEE 2R E DT o

geographic segmental analysis is presented for the

year.
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6. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER LOSSES,
NET

6. HAfhlg AR HMEIRRHE

2014 2013
—E-EF ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BMF T
Other revenue Hg A
Bank interest income HRITH B UA 1,569 1,672
Other loan interest income H 0B FH B A 415 4
Interest income on financial assets not WA EFAEE
at fair value through profit or loss 2 EEZFBIRA 1,984 1,676
Other losses, net HibE8 8
Available-for-sale securities: realisation of AIHIHER S -
change in fair value on disposal HEREEANFEES) (1,218) -
Net loss on sale of investment properties HEREME 2 EI8 35 (2,959) -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - M REE
plant and equipment B8 (94) -
(4,271) -
7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 7. KRR (E58)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREATDRF(BIE) BB (GHA) -
(crediting):
2014 2013
—ZE-NF —E—=%F
HK$000 HK$°000
BHFT BMF T
(@)  Staff costs (@ BIpAK
Salaries, bonuses and awards e TeA KR
(including directors’ emoluments) (BREEEFHE) 3,272 2,896
Contributions to defined contribution plan TFEREHIGTEIHER 143 111
3,415 3,007
(b)  Other items (by HAIEER
Auditors’ remuneration Z SR B & 556 566
Depreciation e 16 23
Operating lease charges in respect of EEAEmEL
rented premises KRR ERY 4,682 5,398
Rental income, net of outgoings WA (BMBRHEL) (2,277) (1,847)
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8. TAXATION

68

(a)

8. MHE

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (@ RiGctBEmkAEMEENERE A

and other comprehensive income represents: &
2014 2013
—E-AF —T=5F
HK$°'000 HK$°000
BT T BT

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ENEATIE — FB RS
Provision for the year FREHE 58 -

Deferred tax RIETTE

Current year REE (192) -
(134) -

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated BB NG IR A F L k5t FE R B m )
at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable AT ZE165% (ZZE— =% :16.5%) 1k
profits for the year. No provision for Hong Kong Profits R - BN AEERF NSRS
Tax for 2013 has been made in the consolidated B MU ERGABRRELEZF
financial statements as the Group incurred a tax loss — = FRBNSTELE -

for the year.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) HERAMIXFHEZHIEX HESETHE
profit at applicable tax rates: Z BRI
2014 2013
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T B TFT
Profit/(loss) before taxation MBI RDER, (E518) 631 (1,332)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before taxation BEATE A, (E5E)
ZRENIE 104 (220)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAAHMB T R 2 RS2 1,514 173
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERBUWA 2 B2 (1,187) (457)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised AERRB BB
BREZHBTE 48 843
Tax effect of prior year tax losses utilised AFEEEALFE
in the current year MIBEE BT E (673) (337)
Tax effect of temporary differences REREHEE L
not recognised MG E 49 )
Underprovision of tax for previous years WA FERIE B
e 1 -
Tax (credit)/charge for the year REEHE(ER), /T H (134) -
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9. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS 9. ESH&
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of BIEEBRFTHEFIFE 161 EEBEZESHE W
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows: N

Salaries, allowances and

Directors’ fees benefits in kind MPF contributions Total
EsHe & RRERENER BRSMK @t
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

—B-mF -“T-=F Z¥-RF -“T-=F -F-BF —T-=-Ff —B-QOF -—T-=F
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000
BEFT  EETT  EETm  EFTT  BEFm EETn  BETm BETR

Executive directors YITEE
Liu Shun Chuen BR2 = - 571 520 29 25 600 545
Yeung Sau Chung HEH = - 962 962 48 48 1,010 1,010
Kong Lingbiao (redesignated on HLE(R=E—=4F
30 May 2013) (Note) TA=THHAA)
Ci3) - - 40 240 2 12 4 252
Non-executive director FHITES
Kong Lingbiao (redesignated on HeE(R=Z—=F
30 May 2013) (Note) AA=+EHE)
(HzE) - - 200 - 10 - 210 -

Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES

Ng Wai Hung Rl 180 180 = - = - 180 180
Wu Wang Li 8 120 120 = - = - 120 120
Jacobsen William Keith Jacobsen William Keith 120 120 - - - - 120 120
420 420 1,773 1,722 89 85 2,282 2,227
Note: Mr. Kong Lingblao resigned as an executive director on MizE: FHEEBEEAR-_ZE—=FERA=1+HEE
30 May 2013 and was redesignated as a non-executive BITES  MEHERBENERIRIENT
director immediately after his resignation. EEo
The remuneration of the directors is within the following EEENFTNEE -
bands:
2014 2013
—EB-lmF —T—=%F
Number of Number of
directors directors
BEEAY BEEAH
Up to HK$1,000,000 781,000,000 7T AT 5 5
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 7% 1,000,001 &2
7% 1,500,000 7T 1 1
6 6
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10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST . REFMAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five (2013: five) individuals with the highest RAZ(ZE—=F: A& ) EausxMA+TE
emoluments, four (2013: four) are directors whose B NB(CE-—=F M) AEE  BE2
emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of the MERWFIORE - BT —R(ZE—=F : —
emoluments in respect of the remaining individual (2013: BIALZ B LEBENT
one) are as follows:
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Salaries and allowances e MoER 1,079 559
MPF contributions B HR 54 27
1,133 586
The emoluments of the individual with the highest &= & A £ 2 Bl T B % 1,000,000 T E

emoluments are within the band from HK$1,000,000 to
HK$1,500,000 (2013: HK$nil to HK$1,000,000).

11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 11.

(a) Basic
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing
the earnings/(loss) attributable to equity holders of

7E#1,500,000 T (ZE— =% : BEZTES

#1,000,0007T) 2 #E -

SREH (5E)

(a) EX
BIREARET,(BE) RN QAR
Hx%ﬁfﬁ&fl/(gﬂg B?ﬁlﬁﬁ?‘ﬁ%

the Company by the weighted average number of Rz T REGTE
ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2014 2013
—E-IOF —F—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
B FT BT
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders RN BRI R B L
of the Company w A (E1E) 713 (1,414)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BEITEBARINE
in issue (thousands) FH AR & (FAR) 499,277 499,277
(b) Diluted (b) #58
No diluted earnings/(loss) per share is presented as HE-_Z—NOFER-_ZT—=F=A
there were no potential ordinary share outstanding =+t EI iifﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁié’é‘ TN B
during both years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013. EHETAKR MY EZEGREERE
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(a)

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12. BREYE

HK$°000
The Group rEH BT T
Fair value NFE
At 1 April 2012 MN-E—-——FYH—H 125,000
Fair value adjustment NEEFE 1,100
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 RNZZE—=F=ZA=+—HEkZZ—=FWAF—H 126,100
Disposal during the year FRNHE (118,800)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B B 8 1 &) 68,587
Fair value adjustment NEEFHE 5,713
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—NF=A=+—H 81,600

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 March 2014 has been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out as of that date by B. I.
Appraisals Limited, an independent firm of qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group. B.
I. Appraisals Limited is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors, and its staff members have
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.
The valuation was arrived at by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in
the same locations and condition. The valuation gave
rise to revaluation gains aggregating approximately to
HK$5,713,000, which has been credited to profit or
loss, for the year ended 31 March 2014.

R-Z—ME=A=+—H  A£E&
BEWMEZANFETIRERNEE I EREE
BV ABERBEEMEMBSMRAR
B EAERARRZBETZHEEAR
EHE o RPBBRIEERATAETS
AEMEees  HE8 AE T
e REYEZEEER RIS -
BEGBED2ERERME KR TR
HEYERREBEZMIGEEREBIER - (FE
EEEHKEA L4 5,713,000 T
EREBE-_E-—NF-_A=+—HLHF
IERPN:F

A
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12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties
Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s investment properties measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

72

(i)

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
guoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

12. #EYME ()
(b) REYEZATFEE

(i)

RFEER
TREFNERE B AR IRE S
WEEFEZAEBREMEZRA
FE ENR=ZRAFEBRCE
ERBEVBRELERFE 135
NPEFE) A VEFEZHE
T 2EHERMAREAZREZ
AHEEREENETFNT

o EAME:BEUE-—EH
ABUBETE 2 AF1E - BIIA
HREEXAERTERN
FRRM ST 2 RHBRE

it&

. F_MEE: NE_FEA
BB AEAEE—H2A]
HmgASE) 2 BF
FAEAMTABRR ZEA
HIE 2 NF(E o TR EERE
ABUR BERESHEETS
R 2 8 AR

o  EFE=QME:ERAERMA
ARz ABBAEZAR
FiE
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12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

12. {EVE B

(b) REWMEZDNFEFTEE

(i) RFEERE)

Fair value measurements as at 31 March 2014
categorised into
R-ZE-ME=ZA=+-ASPEZE
UT&ER 2 AFETE

Fair value
at 31 March
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-E-NE
=R=1+-H
AN ] -4 ok £t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BYEFT BYT T BYEFT BYTF T
Recurring fair value measurement &EMATEE
Residential, industrial and FE IEREE
commercial — Hong Kong — &% 81,600 - - 81,600
Valuation Unobservable
techniques input Range
THEE
RER BAHE gE
Information about Level 3 BRE=RAFENE
fair value measurements ZEH
Residential, industrial and FE -IXLE%E— 58 Market Premium/  -5% t0 2%
commercial — Hong Kong comparison  (discount) on 5% % 2%
approach  quality of the
M5 buildings
bEE  BFERZ
wf8/ (i)

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfer into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

All of the Group's investment properties were
revalued as at 31 March 2014. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of
surveyors, B. I. Appraisals Limited, who have
among their staff members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience
in the location and category of property being
valued.

RBE-_ZT-—NF=A=+—H
IFFE  B—REAE R ZHEILE
BE TESANBLEE=RZIE
Mo REBBE TN HIREEER
ZmERMREREERR T ERR
2 E 7 R .

=71 //\
RN

AEBREREMEEN TN
FZA=T—RHEM - EHETHE
SR EEITRABEBRFEER QR
#1T HBETIRBABNEMSZSS
8 ¥ E Al PR Y TR E
MEBRIBI MG ERLR -
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12.

74

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 12.

(b) Fair value measurement of investment

properties (Continued)

(i) Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 3 fair value measurements
The fair value of investment properties located
in Hong Kong is determined by reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties in the same locations and condition.
Comparable property of similar character and
location are analysed and weighted against all
the respective advantages and disadvantages
of each property in order to arrive at a fair
comparison of capital values.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

The carrying value of the Group’s investment properties
comprises:

wBEME (50
(b) REWMEZDNFETEE)

(i) BHE=RLFETEZEEENT
R#A 25
EEREMEZATETE2ER
Rl B MR 2 SRV R AR B 2
MIGHEIBMETE - ST RE N
HRENA AL ELEERY
ERBZMBENE  UHBRER
BEFH QT -

AEERBEEHEFRAEURDEESIEER
BERGRZAAEMEERIRAFEBENAG
YN BERIIRRENE -

AEERAZRENEZREERRE

2014 2013
—EF-mF —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

In Hong Kong: REE :
Long-term leases REAFEAY 7,600 14,100
Medium-term leases FRERFR A 74,000 112,000
81,600 126,100
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. %  RBREME

The Group
rEE
Leasehold Computer
improvements equipment Total
HEYHEEE BERRE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT
Cost: RN
At 1 April 2012 R-ZZE——FmMA—H 43 12 55
Additions NE 80 8 88
At 31 March 2013 and R-ZE—=F=ZA=+—H
1 April 2013 r=—ZFE—-=ZFMA—H 123 20 143
Additions NE 5 - 5
Disposals He (128) - (128)
At 31 March 2014 RZE—MFE=A=+—H - 20 20
Accumulated RHE
depreciation:
At 1 April 2012 R-Z—=—FmBE—A 3) ) 4
Charge for the year REEHB (19) (4) (23)
At 31 March 2013 and RZE—=F=RA=+—H
1 April 2013 kZZE—=FA—H (22) (5) 27)
Charge for the year REEHK (12) (4) (16)
Disposals HeE 34 - 34
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE-—MF=A=+—H - 9) 9)
Net book value: BREEE !
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—MFE=H=+—H - 1 11
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=%=A=+—H 101 15 116
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

76

13. MK - BABREM (5

(Continued)
The Company
PN
Leasehold Computer
improvements equipment Total
HEWHEEE BRE e
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT BT
Cost: AR
At 1 April 2012 RZE——FWMA—H - 12 12
Additions NE - 8 8
At 31 March 2013, R-ZT—=F=ZA=+—8
1 April 2013 and ZE-=#FNMA-B R
31 March 2014 —E-HF=ZRA=+—H - 20 20
Accumulated ZHE
depreciation:
At 1 April 2012 R-E——FpmA—AH - (M (M
Charge for the year REFHB - 3) 3)
At 31 March 2013 and RZZE—=F=RA=+—8H
1 April 2013 k=—ZE—=FA—H - 4) 4
Charge for the year RFENBR - (5) (5)
At 31 March 2014 RZZE-NFE=A=+—H - 9) 9)
Net book value: BRMERE -
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—MFE=A=+—8H - 1 1"
At 31 March 2013 W_E—=ZF=ZA=+—H - 16 16
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14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

14. RBARZHER

The Company
AT
2014 2013
—EF-mE —T=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LTI - AR 1 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE R BT J&8 .~ B 3R IE 122,461 191,070
122,462 191,071
Impairment losses recognised EHERRERE (62,376) (75,594)
60,086 115,477
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014 EC_ E—MFE=A=+—Bz2EXEWBQFF
are set out in note 29. BEMIEE29 ©
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest JEW M B AR IBAEER 2O REEEE
bearing and with no fixed terms of repayment. They are FRER - fﬁ*ﬁ’\ﬁ?ﬁ KIETRE T 2RSS HEER
classified as non-current as they are not expected to be BARKR+-—ERARUKRE - HES B EIERS -

recoverable within the next twelve months from the end of

the reporting period.

The aggregate impairment loss recognised at 31 March
2014 has been determined by the directors with reference
to the net assets value of the subsidiaries.

H} r”@ %

o

R-_E-NFE=A=+—RzZEBAREBE
RECHEFE2EMBRRZEEFERE
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15.

78

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 15. REELEZHES
The Group The Company
rEE ARFE
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-NFE —T-=F ZT-QNF —T—=F

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BB FT BT BEFT BT
Unlisted shares, at cost FELETR - HRA A = - - -
Share of net assets (R EEFRE 28,668 18,711 = -
28,668 18,711 - -
Details of the Group's interest in the joint ventures are as UTARNEBRRS LR (ERZS
follows:
Proportion of ownership interest
BREELA
Place of Group's Held by Held by
Form of incorporation Particulars of issued ~ effective the a
Name of joint venture  business structure  and operation and paid up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
il
ALK BEAR AEEe  BARE  KWEAF
RELELR EBRRE EEE BhEARE B gL 5E BE IEER
Delta Harbour Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HK$2 50% - 50%  Property investment
hAEERAA AL EE BELT (note)
WERE (W)
Huge King Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HK$2 50% - 50%  Property investment
FHERAA AL &k BELT (note)
WERE (W)
Citi Charm Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HK$2 50% - 50%  Property investment
IKERAR Rl £l BT WERE
Riccini Investments Limited  Incorporated Hong Kong HK$2 50% - 50%  Property investment
il AV B BET WERE
Note: Delta Harbour Limited and Huge King Limited were inactive Mizt: RZZE-—OF=A=+—8B HEERD
at 31 March 2014. Huge King Limited was deregistered from AIREHBERAFRITELEER - THE
the Companies Registry on 6 June 2014, while Delta Harbour RABR-_Z—WFERANAE B REEM
Limited was still proceeding for deregistration subsequent to BEUEER - mBARRAFNRE AHE
the end of the reporting period. EREMILETEEERRRT
All of the above joint ventures are unlisted corporate entities B LEERRYRIFLTERER - WL
of which quoted market prices are not available. BEMHME -
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15. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summary financial information on joint ventures — Group’s

AEREREZHEG ()

ERRAZLE — AEBBEREE 2/

effective interest: BRIE
2014 2013
—2-mE —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Non-current assets 25,250 17,500
Current assets 698 2,840
Non-current liabilities (26,230) (20,290)
Current liabilities (407) (368)
Net liabilities (689) (318)
Income 1,087 1,067
Expenses (884) (1,499)
Profit/(loss) for the year NEEHEF, (E5E) 203 (432)

16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 16. RIS EE
2014 2013
= —T =5
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Available-for-sale equity securities AEEERARF S
Listed in Hong Kong and stated at REE LI AT ES AR

market value (note 27(e)) 1,811 4,989
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17.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

17. FEMGRESR B H fih FE U R IR

The Group The Company
A5EH AR

2014 2013 2014 2013

—F-mE —T--F ZF-NF ZT=F

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT BT T BT

Trade receivables FEUBR TR 199 113 - -

Loans receivable FEE X 7,820 19,680 - -

Loan interest receivables R E T F 8 644 10 - -

Loans and receivables B ERFE 8,663 19,803 - -

Deposit and prepayments e MIENFE 876 748 365 339

9,539 20,551 365 339

The aging analysis of trade receivables which are past due B %8 BB N0 R (B 2 B W AR R 2 BR R 0 AT 4R
but not impaired is as follows: e

The Group
rEE
2014 2013
— ik ==

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Current B HA - _

Less than 1 month past due A AR 1 E A 199 113

199 113
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17.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
All of the trade receivables are expected to be recovered
within one year.

The Group has established credit policies. Rentals receivable
from tenants and service income receivable from customers
are payable on presentation of invoices.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are
debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$199,000 (2013: HK$113,000) which are past due as
at the reporting date and for which the Group has not
provided any impairment losses. Based on past experience of
the Group, it is determined that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of past due balances as there have not
been significant changes in credit quality and the balances
are still considered to be fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

17. FEMGRE R B At FE U R OR (42)

B FEMRBR SR IE AR — S AU -

AEEBERERRR - REEEZBKRAS R
KEREPZREIRBKA - NE&E L EREREAD
B e

NEFRKEREGBEERES KO8T
199,000 7t ( =T — =4 : &1 113,0007T) 2
JEURBR TR - HRWRE A B - ASEET
AT REBEEES - REAEEBER
B ARNEEEEREEARL - MEHDE
BAEA2HWE - WRABBRSHERER
B  AEEYERZSEHZETMEM

on ©

18. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 18. HtEFI AR EMNER

CHARGES
The Group The Company
rEE N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—T-mFE —T—=F ZZE-NF ===
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T BEFT BT T
Accrued charges fEFTE A 705 689 572 566
Other payables HAth fET IR 1 1 - -
Deposit received BlIEE 326 33 = -
Financial liabilities measured RESEN AT E
at amortised cost U aE 1,032 733 572 566

All of the other payables are expected to be settled within
one year or are repayable on demand.

PrEREMENRBRRAR —FRBERERE

81



HyComm Wireless Limited o ZEIREZBIZERAA]

Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

(Year ended 31 March 2014) (B2 = —WWF A =+—HIFE)

19.

82

DEFERRED TAXATION

The Group

The components of deferred tax liabilities provided in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

19.

B IERIF

ES
ERGEAMBRABE ARG ZECBAR &
ZHERE D RRFEN BB :

Accelerated

tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
IEBEITE BIEEE wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 RZE—Z_FUA—H
and 1 April 2013 —EF—=F=ZA=1+—HK
—E—=%mMA—H 722 (470) 252
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BE M 2 =) 801 - 801
Deferred tax charged to Rz 2
profit or loss EIEFL A (662) 470 (192)
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—mF=A=+—H 861 - 861

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of the following items:

AREBEIWARFLIA TR B EREERAEE

2014 2013

—2-mEF —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$°000

BT BT T

Tax losses MIEERE 13,432 14,361
Taxable temporary difference FERBI L R £ 58 - (56)
13,432 14,305
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19.

20.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 19.
The Company

At 31 March 2014, the Company has unused tax losses

of approximately HK$9,841,000 (2013: HK$6,706,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax

asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of

future profits streams. The tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

BEETRIA (450)
ZNNE

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—H ' ARAEXHH
THIBERER 9,841,000 T (—FB—=4 : &
#5 6,706,000 7T ) AT (45 88 K 20 F o A K
BETERT AR ACHEFIR - S EERIEL T IAE
B - BIBEE ] ER LS -

SHARE CAPITAL 20. ¥
Number of Amount
shares per share Amount
R EE BREH x|
‘000 HK$ HK$'000
T BT BT T
Authorised: JETE
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013, RZE——FMA—H -
1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 —E—=F=ZRA=+—H"
—E-=HNA-BE
—E-ME=A=+—H 20,000,000 0.10 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013, R-ZE——FMA—H -
1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 —E-=F=HA=+—H"
—E-ZFWA-BK
—ET-NFE=A=+—H 499,277 0.10 49,928
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21.

84

RESERVES

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end
of the year are set out below.

21. %@

REBGAE

25 ¥

mEA

B RV AR R 2 B

REBENGEEREH R - ARRAERER D

RENRFLREZ

HEmT -

Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
(Note)
R E BALE ES 2] #st
(PR &E)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
The Company ¥ NG|
At 1 April 2012 R-ZE——%mWAB—H 143,807 555,303 (499,753) 199,357
Total comprehensive loss REFEHBBEE
for the year - - (6,953) (6,953)
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=ZA=+—H 143,807 555,303 (506,706) 192,404
At 1 April 2013 R-—ZE—=F1AF—H 143,807 555,303 (506,706) 192,404
Total comprehensive income  AEE 2 EUW A EE
for the year - - 11,218 11,218
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—NE=H=1+—H 143,807 555,303 (495,488) 203,622
Note: [

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of a former subsidiary
at the date on which the Group reorganisation became effective
and the nominal amount of the share capital of the Company issued
under the Group reorganisation in 1997.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
contributed surplus is also available for distribution to shareholders.
However, a company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(@  the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

AABZHAREENEESHELENE A —HAHE
RAZGEEBRRESEARBE-NNLFEEEEET
AR BBRAEER 5 -

REBEERE-NN\—FREEUERIAR) - MAEETR
A TR - AW ETIERT - ARTEE
BAEEERIRMBRERIEEDIK

(@) ARERINEHRNEESEAEEIHE
B

b) RAEEEZAZREEEEMEREERE O
BRATRCA T A i (B R 2 48T
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22. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 22,

On 25 November 2013, the Group acquired 100% of
the issued share capital of Electronics Tomorrow Property
Holdings Limited (“ETPH") and Issegon Company Limited
(“Issegon™). ETPH, an investment holding company, is the
parent of Issegon and lessgon is engaged in leasing of
property for rental income. The acquisition was made as part
of the Group's strategy to seek investment to broaden its
income stream. The purchase consideration was in the form
of cash, with HK$6,850,000 paid at the day of signing the
sale and purchase agreement and the balance was paid on
25 November 2013. The acquisition has been accounted for
using acquisition method. The fair values of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of ETPH and Issegon were as follows:

B E LR
RZT—=F+—A=Z+HH AEEWK
i Electronics Tomorrow Property Holdings
Limited ([ETPH]) X Issegon Company Limited
(Mssegon]) 2B FHITRA - LELIR A A
ETPH Alssegon 2 £FA &) + T lssegon 1t EHH &
ME - UERIHS A - WE AR S ESKiE
FIARR ZIRERE—HD - MEREFAXE
2 WERE B 6,850,000 TEREFEH
HEEAXN  MBRRAER T —=F1+—
AR+ R B - YTy AUEEEAARR < A
T AETPH K lssegon 2 Al & Rl EE R BEZ A
ERER

Total fair
value
Carrying recognised
amount on Fair value on
acquisition adjustment  acquisition
U
RUEE R~ ‘Az
REE ATFERAE AVEAE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
Net assets acquired: WS EEFE -
Bank and cash balances RITRIREEH 631 - 631
Deposits and prepayment B RIBMHNFTEA 92 - 92
Income tax recoverable AU O FT S AR 30 - 30
Investment properties BEME 65,100 3,487 68,587
Accrued charges FEETE M (39) - 39
Deferred tax liabilities EERBRE (801) - (801)
65,013 3,487 68,500
An analysis of the cash flows in respect LA &7 BUEE B 2
of the acquisition of subsidiaries is ZIREMEDH -
as follows:
Cash consideration paid ENEERE 68,500
Bank and cash balances acquired U B FT B ER 1T RIR S A 6R (631)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEELAZESRE S5 67,869
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23.

86

OPERATING LEASE

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

23. EE2HE
REBEAEBEA
PR BRI RS - A EAR R A AT
MER R R SRS 2 AR 5B

2014 2013

—E-F —ET—=%F

HK$'000 HK3$'000

EBEFT JBETT

Within one year —FR 385 355

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for the car parks under management. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals are
fixed during the term.

EERENTIEARER I EREE RN 2
e - MNEREETFHAEME  BRES
EEEER

The Group as lessor rEBEREEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RiE R ERE - REEREBLH TR
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum REARIBEETL)
lease payments:
2014 2013
— ik —F=F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Within one year —FR 1,956 16
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 3,260 -
5,216 16
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24. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME 24. B#FiEFEHE

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group joined a
mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for
all employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of independent
trustees.

Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group in respect of the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions specified therein. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce contributions payable
in future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions charged to
profit or loss represent contributions payable by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no
significant forfeited contributions available to reduce
contributions payable by the Group in future years.

“EREFT_A-HR rEERTED
BES2E-ERFUEATESHE(RESF
21 - REFTEIDRBERBIEAE S F B
PRSIt AL EEIERER - BESA
B BE  RBBULERAEN ZESRER
SEZBEENFRFTE

REBESE AR BEEREERASA
BRARTAR 2 Lo R M At BE L 5K - A& E
FRRTE S ET & 2 — B ERRIEZAT BIE L
EFHR - B A& QWA R A A
BB HER -

BEENG RIREMNEF IR AR ERRR
e ERAGTRZ L RER 2 #3K o

RBERBEERE - AEELEEADRWH
XA AR A SR B R AR B R 2 (R
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25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 25. MEALXES
(@) The Group entered into the following transactions () #HE—Z—NF=-A=+—HULEFE "
with related parties during the year ended 31 March AEBEBFAFEATEIIATRS
2014:
2014 2013
—E—-mEF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Interest income received from: HELATN A BT U R B U A
Citi Charm Limited shIKBBRAR] 223 -
Riccini Investments Limited Riccini Investments Limited 193 -
Citi Charm Limited and Riccini Investments Limited are 5L JK & R A &) B Riccini Investments Limited 5
joint ventures of the Group. RAEB 2 EERE -
(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b) FEEBAEZHE
Remuneration for key management personnel of the REBETEERABEZBE - BIEHFE9
Group, including amount paid to the Company's EHFE 10 HEENARTEERES
directors as disclosed in note 9 and the highest paid A TREHS AT
employee as disclosed in note 10, is as follows:
2014 2013
—ZE—mEF —E-=fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BT
Short term employee benefit EHEESET 3,415 2,813
The above remuneration is included in staff costs as it AN 7@ TS TR A
disclosed in note 7(a). 7 o
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26. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

27.

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at reasonable costs.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure it is effective and optimises
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group prevailing and projected
capital expenditure and projected investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may consider the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, the return of capital to shareholders, the issue
of new shares or selling assets to reduce debt.

The Group assesses the total equity presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of financial position for capital
management purposes.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and equity price
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.

These risks are limited by the Group'’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
loans receivable and trade and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The Group minimises the credit risk on loans receivable
by obtaining certain guarantees and collateral
from borrowers and the directors have delegated
responsibility for credit checks on borrowers.

26.

27.

BREEREE
AEEREREAZTEARAREARERFE
REXB 2N BREAKETEBRERR
AR5 5T E R BR KT E 2 BR LB BIARE
MAERRE  EER/BRRBRLOR - WAH
SR A AR A aR o

AEBETHERRN RNEBRERER B
ZRIAKEERZARESCHE - AHEXR
X RIEHREHRE  UBRERERITZE
M RERERREDR

REFIHBENERE  ARERGERIKN
BRRzBRBEE  MEREMER - BITHR
IHEEENRDBE -

REAEEME - AREFEESE MBI
BREF 2R BRE -

MERREERMEIALFE

AEBEBEARXBEEBTELZEER RBE
& MR RBREEERE o

ZERBE T XAt AR B 2 B 7 E TR BUR )
TEBIBRH] -

() FERR
AEEZEERR T EREBRE KA
KIEW IR R BN RIE - BEEED
B EEREUASBEEMAR 2EE
[\ o

AEBZE BB ERARGE TERRE
o UEERERKERZEERR -
EXCZR—HAEE  AEERERA
ZIER °
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

90

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and takes into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk, without taking
account of any collateral held, is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowances.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 17.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, i.e.
short term investment of cash surpluses. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and compliance with lending covenants, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

27. MERBEERMBIALFE

(a)

(b)

EEmRE ()

B AR R K M ERIAT S - 28
B EERBERAE TEENMERPE
TEBEER S - HEFEEERTFSB
ERHNE A8 MR EReE 1 - A ET
RBEBEPUAMREPRERBMAERE
RENFEER - —RMF - AEET
BRE PRI -

I R FE AR BERT
AEBEAEAZZ&ZEERR AT B
LR TR A& B 15 B B AN RR (R (B
Bk ZAREE

BRAAREEEAZRE RRIRR K E A
U FBEZEERR EMELREE
B 17 ©

RBESRR

AEBETENEEERATERZEN
ReEE NRSARBZEHKRE K
SENBRRERERERARPESZFKX
MREBREEER  AERERRTR
WREREBRERARERBEEEFS
VAR = 2 B IS MR AR (1R S R0 ARG R
BE - UENEEMEERAZADES

e
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

27. MERBEERRMBIALFE

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBELEK(E)
The following table details the remaining contractual TREIAEERARBTBEEERR
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the HHBGERBE 2 FRE N BBFE -
Group's and the Company’s financial liabilities, which TIRBEHORURRE R E (BEREA
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows AR S RFEFE - BIRERR
(including contractual rates or, if floating, based on LHRAERE CERFR) UEAEE R
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and RRARlENRz &% FBEEE
the earliest date the Group and the Company pay:
2014
ZE-mE
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years
a#
AURRE —FRF BB-F BBmME
BEE RELE EER BHRME BLREEF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BEFT BETFT BEFTT BETFT
The Group r&EE
Other payables and HibER AR
accrued charges Bzt E 1,032 1,032 1,032 - -
The Company NG|
Other payables and HibER AR
accrued charges Bzt & 572 572 572 - -

A
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

92

()

27. MERBEERMBIALFE

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBESEK(E)
2013
“ET-CF
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years
&H
AURRS —Fmsk iR RBmE
FEE MELE EZk  ELRME  EIRLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETFT BETFT BEFT BETFT
The Group Vi
Other payables and HipERFUER
accrued charges gt 733 733 733 - -
The Company NG|
Other payables and Hit e 3Ia R
accrued charges gl 566 566 566 - -
Interest rate risk (o F=mEg
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from ZIKEIEKxZﬂTH R T ERBEEKRE

loans receivable and bank deposits. Loans receivable
bearing interest at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. The bank deposits bearing
interest at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that a general increase/decrease of
100 basis points in the interest rates of variable rate
bank savings prevailing at the reporting date, with all
other variables held constant, would increase/decrease
the Group's profit after tax and decrease/increase
accumulated losses by approximately HK$60,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$50,000).

RERITER - ELEKRERAAEE

’“t?K FEFERER fﬁ?ﬂ?mh@%%b
%|JTQ+§ BEAREBEAZRERFIR
i

BREZH

B RBREBMEAZZERITHRER
EELEE LT RN 100EES, - M A
HhEHpHErE  AEE-_T—NF
A=t HLFEAEEBKRBEE
Tl sE b, A & Rt BB R 4,18
MEEE60,00 T (=T —=F: B
50,0007T) °
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis
points increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the end of the next
reporting period. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2013.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets (see Note 16).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group observes
the investee company’s operation and development,
and seeks to obtain an understanding of their business
management.

It is estimated that an increase/decrease of 10% in the
quoted share prices of these financial assets, with all
other variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s net assets and fair value reserve
by approximately HK$180,000 for the year ended 31
March 2014 (2013: HK$490,000).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s fair value reserve that would
arise assuming that the changes in the respective
quoted share prices have occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period. It is also assumed that the
fair values of the Group's equity investments would
change in accordance with the historical correlation
with the relevant share price that none of the Group’s
available-for-sale financial assets would be considered
impaired as a result of the short term fluctuation of
the relevant share, and that all other variables remain
constant.

27. MERBEERRMBIALFE

(9

(d)

R = EBE (4)
HBEDH (E)
EAGRESTTIRENRE RIS H
MERKHEEE YCRANGEE
ZHAFEFBTAMERRE - EFrsk
TERI10EEHEEEBHET —ER
SHIMA R L AE R R AT gL IR A2
HYMETN L —E-=F 20K
MR RIEAEHETT -

R EE R R
AEBEAZDBESAIHEEMBEE
(RIFE16) Z BB PTE S 2 IRiEE
REEHRR

AEBZ EHRERBEMARIME
RAB LS - AEEBERKEHR AR
ZEBRER  WHBHEEREERE -

S EEMRRE LA T
10%  MATEHMS BT TE  AE
Z-E-NE=ZA=+—HILFEAE
EEEFEMAFERBB LA TH
475 ¥ 180,000 C( — T —=F : B
490,0007T) ©

BRESMIEL  BRSMBREZE
PENRESHRAERSELE  YERA
REFAEBARERBEZHBIA
Mz %S TRSAEERN R E B E & RE
AARBAEERRR  HAKEZAF
BEREEXRBIFEZE - LI RRAE
BRERE 2 A FE SIREBBRE
BAHRMEREEMES - QAR HH
EVBEEMERBRRNERKEMN
WERRE - BEFARMESERFTE
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

94

(e)

Fair values

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

27. MERBEERMBIALFE

(e)

NFE

TR AIME PR AR IR B R
EHEZARRRENEZATFE B
DPBZRANTFERBR (EEREBTHR
LARERE135 0 A FEHFE) AFE
EZABEIESEMERMATBE A
HEZABREREEEETOT

o FBRMAE: EUAFE-RBARE
B RATE  AUEREESE
BERFEAMEERM ST 2 RH

ERE+E

o  EBIMEE: B _fEARK
(BITREFE —RZABER AR
B)FtE - B TEREKRM A #
RZBABIBEZATE - TAEE
WAREREXESERM SRR
ZBABE

s  F=AAE: EREAMAAEER

significant unobservable inputs ZBABIEEZ A HE
2014
—E-mF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E— -t 11} E=4
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
EBEFT BEF T BEFT
Financial assets at fair value: BEAFEAER
B EE ¢
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHEEMKEE 1,811 - -
Total assets EEBE 1.811 = =
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

27. MERBEERRMBIALFE

(e) Fair values (Continued) (e) AFEMHE

2013

—F—=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
EF—H B4R E=4
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T B F T BT T

Financial assets at fair value: BAFEARZ
HIEEE

Available-for-sale financial assets A EMISEE 4,989 - -
Total assets BERE 4,989 - -

()

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm'’s length basis. These
instruments are included in level 1.

Estimation of fair values

Available-for-sale financial assets

The fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets
is based on quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period without any deduction for transaction
costs.

()

WEBNISEBEZMB TR Z RAFET
AR RS AR A5 R FTI B /A ELE o
PR B AR AT BN RE R H T R
SE &L TEAR BRREEX
EERBES MAFERRARERE
M AP RAETOMSR S - AW
SRAER RETEREFAE—RA -

APELH

AHHBEENBEE
AHHERBEE 2 X T ETAREH
fel 4 R B R 0 8 (B HIBRME R R B
) BRI -
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28.

96

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2014 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the Group.

28. WEBE_ZE—MNE=A=+—HLHF

ECRMHEMNRKERZERT - FHEA
RREZURLE

HEMWSHBEREATIZAMS - F825Q
SDEMZERBE S —NME=A=1+—8
IEFEHRERZAET R ER - IERIEET
3T RINE R S B TS sk R ER AR - AT BB e
AEBBBE ST RFER T -

Effective for the accounting periods
beginning on or after
PRUAT BHEIsk 2 @ Btn 2 &t HIR A

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

BB G ERIEI25E(ER])  HBHBFEERYFARE

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
EAEYVTEHMELRIEIF - IFETA

| January 2014
—E-mFE-HA—H

No mandatory effective date yet
i) 8 5 1) A 2 H B

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
their adoption is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group's results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and
Audit”, of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) come into operation from the Group's first financial
year commencing on or after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the
Group’s financial year which will begin on | April 2014) in
accordance with Section 358 of that ordinance. The Group
is in the process of making an assessment of the expected
impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the
financial statements in the period of initial application of
Part 9. So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to
be significant and will primarily only affect the presentation
and disclosure of information in the financial statements.

AEER AL SETHBERERNENE
HIZE - B AT A RMALL S ER T KA
REHARB ZRLEXERMBANBRERF

@,
=

AN - IRIB B A REDI (£ 622 %) 5358
k- BRAGHIE IR [ARE RE BARAR
—E-MFE=A=RRRAKNE @ BFE R
ARFE T —WFMA— BRFEGHIERF
JE) AR o N5 B3R IE AT 2 RHE B By B B ¥
BREREIOMME M BHRRZAMPE -
BRI A BERTETATEBEA B
REFEMBHBRPERNZ2IIEEEL A
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BTSRRI EE

(Year ended 31 March 2014) (B2 =Z— W& =-_A=1+—HItFE)

29. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 29. FATFIMBAFZHE

COMPANY
: e A — o I e e
Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2014 are as R-ZFE-—ME=ZA=+—R " MEIRAFEW
follows: T:
Percentage of equity
RERAL
Issued
Place of incorporation/ Group's Held capital/
establishment effective by the Held by paid-in
Name of company and operation holding Company subsidiary capital ~ Principal activities
BT
AL/ BT s3] HAAT HKEARE B*x/
AAER REEHY BBEE =) o) BARE IEXEK
Capital Scope Limited British Virgin Islands 100% 100% - US$1  Investment holding
RERAES 151 REBER
Capital Up Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 100% 100% — US$1  Investment holding
RRELHS 151 REZR
Classic Charter Limited Hong Kong 96% — 96% HK$50  Loan financing
REFRAF Bt BES0T  BRRE
Concord Base Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100% — 100% HK$1  Inactive
EMEEBERAT e BT UEER
Concord Ocean Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 100% 100% - US$1 Investment holding
RERUES 15t REBR
Electronics Tomorrow Property British Virgin Islands 100% — 100% US$100  Investment holding
Holdings Limited RERHES 100%r  BERR
Issegon Company Limited Hong Kong 100% — 100% HK$300,000  Property investment
EE EH300000T  MERE
Jumbo Light Limited British Virgin Islands 100% 100% — US$1  Investment holding
RRELHES 120 RERR
Keen Capital Investments Limited Hong Kong 100% 100% — HK$1  Carpark management
HEREBRAR B BT RESER
Mega Shine Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 100% — 100% HK$1  Inactive
hBEEBRAF BE BT EERK
Million Good Group Limited British Virgin Islands 100% - 100% US$100  Property investment
RERLES 100%T  MERE
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BTSRRI EE

(Year ended 31 March 2014) (B2 = —WWF A =+—HIFE)

29. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

29. ENFIMBATZHE (&)

98

Percentage of equity
RERIL
Issued
Place of incorporation/ Group's Held capital/
establishment effective by the Held by paid-in
Name of company and operation holding Company subsidiary capital  Principal activities
BRI
FMERL/ BT F5HE HAEAF M E AR B*/
AR REEHY BREE B8 58 BEARA TEEH
Oasis Star Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands 100% — 100% US$100  Investment holding
KREKHE 100%XT  REEK
Orient Glory Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 100% — 100% US$100  Investment holding
EBANES 100%7T  REER
Prime Concept Development Limited Hong Kong 100% 100% — HK$1  Investment holding
ERERERAHF & BT REER
Royal Asset Investments Limited Hong Kong 100% — 100% HK$1  Property investment
SEREBRAT Bt BT MERE
Sino Art Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 100% — 100% HK$1  Inactive
ENRERRAH B BT EERE
Wealth Jade Limited British Virgin Islands 100% — 100% US$100  Investment holding
EBALES 10057 RERR
World Regal Limited British Virgin Islands 100% 100% — US$T  Investment holding
et 150 RERR
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RESULTS E 4
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—F-FF ZF—% ZT--f ZT-=F ZF-QmF
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(£7) (E7) (E7)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
JEEF T EMFT BMFT JEMF T BETT
Turnover BERE 9,531 8,241 8,183 9,338 9,122
Other operating income Hb el A 1,840 1,371 2,616 1,676 1,984
Operating costs HAADFN (9,438) (12,121) (14,344) (13,014) (12,120)
Other operating income (expenses) Hip@ZWA (Fx2) 21,140 31,720 13,300 1,100 5,713
Profit/(loss) from operating activities & ¥£#5% 7]/ (FE) 23,073 29,211 9,755 (900) 4,699
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HEREHETHK
available-for-sale financial assets BEZWE/ (BR) 6,210 6,370 989 - (1,218)
Net loss on sale of investment HEREMEZEIRFE
properties - - - - (2,959)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME KENREZ
plant and equipment BB - - . _ (94)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEMB AT Z W 20,701 - - - -
Finance costs B RS R AR (1,414) (651) (322) - -
Share of results of joint ventures FEEAEhEER - - - (432) 203
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRE AR (1) 48,570 34,930 10,422 (1,332) 631
Taxation g (103) (117) (32) - 134
Profit/(loss) for the year REFRF/(BE) 48,467 34,813 10,390 (1,332) 765
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
At 31 March R=A=+—H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
-z —E——% ZZ--F ZT-=F ZEB-MAF
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(E=51) (E71) (E51)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT T BT
Total assets BERE 353,979 374,705 316,286 312,138 319,661
Total liabilities BfERE (63,865) (62,717) (1,461) (985) (1,903)
Shareholders’ funds BRES 290,114 311,988 314,825 311,153 317,758
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FTEVNFEUE

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 March

REFBREMENR _ZE-—NF=A=1+—BZFHE

2014 are as follows: mr
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES rREME
Gross Group's
floor area attributable
Location (sq. ft.)  Purpose Term of lease interest
EHEEE AEBEEMN
i 2 (FAR) H#® HAOFH s
1. Flat E on 13th Floor, Hing On Mansion, 600  Residential Long-term lease 100%
On Shing Terrace, No. 5 Tai Yue Avenue, x= REIEL
Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong
BEEBEREH
AW SHLEE
FLZE13ER
2. Workshop Unit Nos. 03 to 07 on 16,225 Industrial and  Medium-term lease 100%
9th Floor, Car Parking Space No. L48 on commercial A HFR4Y
Ground Floor and Car Parking Space Ims

No. P45 on Basement Floor,

Harbour Centre Tower 1,

No. 1 Hok Cheung Street, Hung Hom,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

BENBE

ATRIES AT 198

HEFEFR N PR

91203 E 0757 T35 « b NEEIL485R %
HfEE B 37 P45 5%

100
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